Minutes of Meeting

Board of Funeral, Cemetery and Consumer Services

April 20, 2006 - 10:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M.

Department of Business and Professional Regulation

Northwood Center Board Room #101

1940 N Monroe Street

Tallahassee, FL

I. Call to Order and Roll Call

Mr. Greg Brudnicki, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 10:00 am.  Ms. Diana Evans, Executive Director, called the roll:

  

PRESENT:


         



  
Greg Brudnicki, Chairman
   
Jody Brandenburg, Vice-Chairman      



 
Pete Ballas


         



  
Justin Baxley  


         


  
Powell Helm
 

Nancy Hubbell  


Tracy Huggins        





  
Ken Jones






  
Gail Thomas-DeWitt





  
Catherine Zippay


ALSO PRESENT:

        
Diana Evans, Executive Director


Elizabeth Teegen, Department Chief Counsel


Tom Barnhart, Board Counsel


Lesley Mendelson, Department Counsel


Casia Sinco, Department Counsel


Richard Brinkley, Department Staff


LaTonya Bryant, Department Staff


Crystal Grant, Department Staff


James Gellepis, Department Staff


Tina Cummings, Department Staff

Ms. Evans declared a quorum.

II.        Action on the Minutes
A. February 9, 2006
Mr. Chairman confirmed that all Board members had read the draft of the minutes of the previous Board meeting held on December 1st.

MOTION:  Mr. Powell Helm moved to adopt the minutes of the meeting.  Mr. Ken Jones seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

B. March 16, 2006 - Teleconference
Mr. Chairman confirmed that all Board members had read the draft of the minutes of the previous teleconference meeting held on September 13th.

MOTION:  Col. Pete Ballas moved to adopt the minutes of the meeting.  Ms. Gail Thomas-DeWitt seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

III.
Old Business

A.  Informal Hearings
1.  
Application for Embalmer Apprentice



a.
Carmen Chandler, Embalmer Apprentice (Pensacola)

Ms. Evans stated that on February 9, 2006 the Board denied an application for licensure to Carmen R. Chandler, an applicant for Funeral/Embalmer Apprentice based on a criminal history. 

Applicant answered, “Yes” to Question # 1 in Background Information - “Have you been convicted or found guilty, in any jurisdiction, regardless of adjudication, of a felony or misdemeanor?”

The applicant has submitted documentation in response to Question #1 for consideration.

On February 24, 2006 Department of Financial Services received a letter requesting an informal hearing for reconsideration of a Board’s decision.

MOTION:  Ms. Catherine Zippay moved to deny the application pursuant to Sections 497.152(2) and 497.368(1)(c), F.S.  Ms. Thomas-DeWitt seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.


2.
Application for Removal Service



a.
Darrel Jenkins, Riverside Transport (New Port Richey)

Ms. Evans stated that on February 9, 2006 the Board denied an application for licensure to Darrel Jenkins, sole owner of Riverside Transport located at 9823 Miramar St., New Port Richey, Florida 34654, based on a criminal history.

Applicant answered “Yes” to Section 9, in Criminal History Question a. – “Has any person subject to disclosure requirements ever plead guilty, been convicted, or entered a plea in the nature of no contest, regardless of whether adjudication was entered or withheld by the court in which the case was prosecuted, in the courts of Florida or any other state or the United States, or a foreign country, regarding any crime indicated below?”

The applicant has submitted documentation in response to Section 9, for consideration.

On March 10, 2006 Department of Financial Services received a letter requesting an informal hearing for reconsideration of a Board’s decision.

MOTION:  Mr. Helm moved to deny the application pursuant to Sections 497.152(2) and 497.385(1)(a), F.S.  Ms. Thomas-DeWitt seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.


B.
Preneed License Initial Application



1.
Jay’s Funeral Home (Perrine)

Ms. Evans stated that the Department received the application on September 2, 2005. A deficiency letter issued by the Department on September 15th noted missing financial statements. On October 18th the Department received a balance sheet as of December 31, 2004 for Mr. Lee C. Jay, sole proprietor. Included was an income statement for Jay/Johnson Funeral Home that was stated on an income tax basis. 

On December 23rd the Department notified Mr. Jay of the incompatible financial statements and requested more recent statements if available. Mr. Jay indicated that an accountant was attempting to prepare new statements for the meeting. 

In a telephone conversation on January 31st, Mr. Jay informed the Department that new financials could not be ready for the February meeting and requested that the Board defer the application until the April, 2006 meeting. The Board voted to defer the application.

On April 6, 2006 the Department received the personal financial statement for Mr. Jay as well as financials for Jay’s Funeral Home. The statements remain for the period ended December 31, 2004.The financial statement for Lee C. Jay, sole proprietor, reflects the following: 

             
Preneed Contracts 
= $                0                



Required Net Worth 
= $       10,000


Reported Net Worth
= $  1,993,421

The Department notes that the accountant’s letters state that Mr. Jay’s and Jay’s Funeral Home statements are prepared in accordance with tax accounting principles. In a phone conversation with Mr. Jay on April 11th, he stated that he requested more recent end date GAAP statements from the accountant, but was provided the statements contained herein.

The original application contained copies of an insurance contract and preneed assignment of policy form from ACA Assurance. The Department inquired regarding a preneed contract and was informed that the funeral home was considering funding through a trust. As of April 11th, no documents have been received related to trusting.

Mr. Chairman stated that it appears the statements are pretty close to GAAP.

Ms. Nancy Hubbell added that one of the things that stand out is net income is $49,409, which is exactly the amount of the cash in the bank.  

Mr. Helm questioned whether the Department has received all the necessary documentation.

Ms. Evans stated that more recent financials were requested, but have not been received.
Mr. Chairman stated that if the applicant would submit a letter from the accounting stating that the financials are in accordance with GAAP, maybe the statements would not have to be changed.  The Board would have to assume that the $49,409 was just a coincidence.

Ms. Hubbell stated that the compilation letter from the account makes no reference to GAAP.

MOTION:  Mr. Jody Brandenburg moved to deny the application.  Mr. Justin Baxley seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.


C.
Probation Appearance

       

1.
Camel Funeral Home (Belle Glade)

Ms. Evans stated that in September ’05, the Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers handled several disciplinary cases where the order included mandatory probation and reappearance before the Board prior to the probation being lifted.
Leondre and Arlene Camel are the owners of Camel Funeral Home.  The FDIC is Nakia Ingraham.  They were ordered to 6 months probation, a $2000 fine, which was paid to the Department, and costs in the amount of $235.42, which has not been paid.  The FDIC was ordered to take and pass the Florida Laws and Rules Exam.  Ms. Ingraham took the exam twice and failed both times.  However, there is a new FDIC, Mr. Rickey Butts.  The requirement to take and pass the exam would not apply to Mr. Butts as he was not the FDIC at the time of the case.  Ms. Ingraham was also ordered to take 3 hours of Continuing Education in Ethics and she took 5 hours.  The outstanding issue is the cost in the amount of $235.42.
Ms. Thomas-DeWitt stated that under the terms of the probation it states that the licensed FDIC, Ms. Ingraham, must take and pass the Florida Laws and Rules Exam before the probation or suspension would be lifted.  According to the stipulation, this was required.

Ms. Evans questioned when Mr. Butts was appointed FDIC.

Mr. Butts answered April ’05.

Ms. Evans questioned when Ms. Ingraham was the FDIC.

Ms. Nakia Ingraham responded that she was the FDIC up until March ’05.
Mr. Chairman questioned whether the new FDIC has to retake the exam since Ms. Ingraham failed twice.

Ms. Thomas-DeWitt stated, “Yes, according to the orders.” 

Ms. Zippay pointed out that Ms. Ingraham is also on the Agenda under #8 for Probationary Appearance.  That is where her failure to pass the exam should be addressed.

Ms. Evans stated that under this case, action was taken against the funeral home and the FDIC separately.

Mr. Baxley questioned whether Mr. Butts has any prior discipline on his license.

Mr. Butts responded no.

Mr. Chairman questioned whether Mr. Butts was working at the funeral home during the time when Ms. Ingraham was the FDIC.

Mr. Butts responded no.

Mr. Tom Barnhart stated that consent agreement would have been done with the assumption that the present funeral director would remain in place.  If someone new came in, the same restrictions would not apply if the new person was in good standing.

Mr. Brandenburg stated that it does not appear that the stipulation refers to Ms. Ingraham.  It just states that the licensee’s FDIC.  

Mr. Helm questioned when the cost would be paid.

Mr. Jones questioned how long Mr. Butts has been licensed.

Mr. Butts responded April ’05.

MOTION:  Col. Ballas moved to lift the probation pending receipt of a check for the costs due.  Ms. Tracy Huggins seconded the motion, which passed with 2 dissenting votes.

       

2.    Clary, Gary (Havana)
Ms. Evans stated that Mr. Gary Clary was ordered to be on probation for 6 months and pay costs in the amount of $201.16, which was paid January 3, 2006.  Mr. Clary was also ordered to take and pass the Florida Laws and Rules exam, which he took and failed on February 27, 2006.  In addition, Mr. Clary was ordered to take 3 hours of Continuing Education, which has not been completed.
Mr. Gary Clary stated that he made bad judgment in moving his funeral home from Quincy to Tallahassee.  The location where the funeral home was moved, the old Wharf, had a history that Mr. Clary was unaware of.  After signing a lease, lots of problems arose.  Mr. Clary received a 3 day notice to move or sign a new lease.  Mr. Clary moved within the 3 days back to his original funeral home in Havana.  During the process of getting the funeral home up and running, Mr. Clary received a death call from a family that he been serving for 25 years.  Mr. Clary embalmed the bodied, which is why he was placed on probation and ordered to pay a fine.  Mr. Clary is currently in litigation with a divorce and the owners of the location in Tallahassee.  Mr. Clary admits that he took the exam although he was not prepared to.  Therefore he requests that the Board would give him additional time to study for the exam.
Ms. Thomas-DeWitt questioned why Mr. Clary has not completed the Continuing Education requirement.

Mr. Clary stated that he was not aware that was a part of the probation.  Mr. Clary added that he would have taken it had he known and will complete the requirement.

Mr. Chairman questioned whether there is another FDIC until Mr. Clary is in compliance.
Mr. Clary stated that he is the only funeral director there.

MOTION:  Ms. Hubbell moved to extend the probation for 6 months, at which time Mr. Clary would reappear before the Board.  Ms. Thomas-DeWitt seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

DISCUSSION: Mr. Brandenburg stated that the Board is supposed to give the subject for Continuing Education.

Ms. Evans questioned whether Mr. Clary had taken any continuing education courses.
Mr. Clary responded that he had in compliance with the renewal of his license.

Ms. Evans questioned whether it was over and above the minimum.

Mr. Clary was unsure.

Mr. Chairman requested that Mr. Clary’s continuing education be done on Ethics and Rules.

     

3.    Coleman, Christopher (Hastings)

       

4.    Coleman’s Mortuary (Hastings)

Ms. Evans stated that Mr. Christopher Coleman was ordered to probation for 12 months, fine in the amount of $3750, costs in the amount of $109.86 and 3 hours of continuing education.   Neither the fine or costs have been paid, nor has the continuing education been completed.
Mr. Christopher Coleman stated that 2 money orders were mailed for the court cost after receipt of a letter from the Department.  Mr. Coleman also submitted documentation of the bodies embalmed.  The only thing that has not been taken care of is the fine.  Mr. Coleman presented a certificate of completion showing he had fulfilled his continuing education requirement.  Mr. Coleman requested an extension of probation to allow him to pay his fine.  Mr. Coleman also presented a certified receipt for the money orders.

Ms. Tina Cummings stated that the money for the cost was received by the Department on April 19th and has been input into the system.
Mr. Brandenburg questioned receipt of the missing reports that were to be submitted within 14 days.

Mr. Coleman stated that the forms were not submitted on the appropriate forms, so Ms. Cummings advised that they had to be resubmitted as such.  Mr. Coleman then faxed the reports in.
Ms. Cummings confirmed that the Department did receive the forms. 

Ms. Thomas-DeWitt questioned how long Mr. Coleman has been a licensed funeral director.

Mr. Coleman responded since 1996.

Ms. Thomas-DeWitt questioned whether Mr. Coleman was familiar with the monthly affidavit forms.
Mr. Coleman stated that he was.  The reports were being sent via regular mail.  Apparently some of the reports got lost in transit and Mr. Coleman was not notified of this.  
Mr. Chairman questioned whether Mr. Coleman is prepared to pay any of the fine today.

Mr. Coleman stated that he could not pay anything today, but would be able to pay $500 for each case.
MOTION:  Ms. Thomas-DeWitt moved to extend the probation pending receipt of $1000 within one week and the balance would be paid within 3 months at which time Mr. Coleman would reappear before the Board.  Col. Ballas seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

       

5.    Cooprider, Stanley (Jupiter)

Ms. Evans stated that Mr. Stanley Cooprider was ordered to be on probation for 6 months, fine in the amount of $1000 and costs of $100.57.  Both were paid on June 23, 2005.  Mr. Cooprider took and passed the Florida Laws and Rules exam on March 30, 2006.  Mr. Cooprider also completed 5 hours of continuing education on October 30, 2005.
MOTION:  Mr. Brandenburg moved to lift the probation.  Ms. Huggins seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

      

6.    Crist, Samuel (Miami)

Ms. Evans stated that Mr. Samuel Crist was ordered to 6 months probation, $1000 fine, $353.57 in fines, take and pass the Florida Laws and Rules exam and take 3 hours of continuing education.  The fines have not been paid.  Mr. Crist did not past the exam and has not taken any continuing education.
Mr. Samuel Crist stated that he was in the process of paying the fine.  Mr. Crist stated that the money he used to take the course was supposed to be used to make installments on the fine, but time ran out.  Mr. Crist requested that he be allowed to pay $500 for the next 2 months and has requested to take the exam again.  Mr. Crist stated that he was unaware of the continuing education requirement.
Mr. Chairman questioned the cost of $353.57.
Mr. Crist stated that would be paid after the fine.
Ms. Lesley Mendelson stated that this case was referred directly from Legal.  Mr. Crist was sent a collection letter in January with no response.  This issue has been forwarded to the collection agency.  Should we try and retrieve this from collections, the agency will add a premium to collect their fee.

Mr. Chairman stated that the probation expired March 29, 2006.  Mr. Chairman questioned what would happen if the Board does not extend the probationary period.

Mr. Barnhart stated the period could not be extended if it has already expired.

Mr. Baxley questioned whether there are any other licensed funeral directors at the funeral home.

Mr. Crist answered yes.

Mr. Baxley questioned why there were no attempts made to comply with the order.

Mr. Crist stated that he understood from the owner of the funeral home that this matter was being put into litigation and that he should wait to comply.
Ms. Thomas-DeWitt questioned whether Mr. Crist is alleging that he was not aware of the restrictions placed upon his license.

Ms. Crist stated that he was but the owner was supposedly getting an attorney and he was advised to wait and see what the outcome would be.

Mr. Robert  Brown questioned what portion of the fine the Board would accept in order to extend the probation.

Mr. Chairman stated that the Board would like the entire fine paid.

Mr. Brandenburg stated that it is impossible for the Board to extend the probation as it has already expired.

Mr. Chairman stated that the fines have to be paid and the license will be suspended until Mr. Crist complies with the order.

Ms. Evans stated that looking at the stipulation, the respondent is Samuel Crist, but in Stipulation Facts it says that the respondent is the funeral establishment, FE1996.

Mr. Crist stated that is his license number, but the establishment had some complaints filed against it.

Ms. Zippay stated that on Clary and Coleman, both of those probations had expired prior to today and the Board extended those.  This is just a point of information so that the Board is consistent.
MOTION:  Ms. Thomas-DeWitt moved to suspend the license until the applicant is in compliance with the order and any fees imposed by the collection agency are paid.  Mr. Baxley seconded the motion, which passed with one dissenting vote.

       

7.    Golebiewski, Thomas (Ft. Lauderdale)

Ms. Evans stated that the Mr. Thomas Golebiewski was ordered 6 months probation, $1000 fine, $180.55 in costs, take and pass the Florida Laws and Rules Exam and 3 hours of continuing education.  The fine and costs were paid on December 13, 2005.  Mr. Golebiewski took and failed the exam twice.  The continuing education requirement has not been completed.
Ms. Cummings stated that Mr. Golebiewski faxed a copy of the certification of completion for the continuing education credits along with a letter advising that he could not attend the meeting as he is in the Police Academy.  Mr. Golebiewski requests an extension of his probation and advises that he would retake the exam.

Ms. Mendelson stated that this item was referred to the collection agency effective March 21, 2006.

Mr. Chairman stated that the records show the monies were paid in December ’05.

Ms. Mendelson stated that she has not received anything showing this.
MOTION:  Ms. Thomas-DeWitt moved to suspend the license.  Col. Ballas seconded the motion, which passed, which passed unanimously.

       

8.    Ingraham, Nakia (Hallandale)

Ms. Evans stated that Ms. Ingraham was ordered 6 months probation, $1000 fine, $191.70 in costs, take and pass the Florida Laws and Rules Exam and 3 hours of continuing education.  The fine and costs were paid on November 10, 2005.  Unfortunately Ms. Ingraham took and failed the exam twice.  On March 27th, Ms. Ingraham completed 5 hours of continuing education.
Mr. Chairman questioned whether Ms. Ingraham is currently working for the same funeral home.
Ms. Ingraham responded no.

Mr. Chairman questioned whether Ms. Ingraham is the FDIC at the funeral home where she is employed.

Ms. Ingraham stated that she is the licensed funeral director over the centralized embalming facility.  Ms. Ingraham added that she is scheduled to retake the exam on Wednesday.
MOTION:  Ms. Hubbell moved to extend the probation for 3 months pending receipt of written consent by the licensee.  Col. Ballas seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

       

9.    Rhodes Funeral Directors, Inc. (Clearwater)

Ms. Evans stated that Rhodes Funeral Directors, Inc. was ordered probation for 6 months, $1000 fine and $167.54 in costs.  The costs and fine were paid November 4, 2005.  The establishment has complied with all stipulations of the order.
MOTION:  Mr. Baxley moved to lift the probation.  Ms. Thomas-DeWitt seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

10. Shannon, Robert (Sarasota)

Ms. Evans stated that Mr. Robert Shannon was placed on probation for 6 months, $1000 fine, $633.80 in costs, take and pass the Florida Laws and Rules Exam and 3 hours of continuing education.  Mr. Shannon has made no attempts to comply with any of the stipulations of the order.
MOTION:  Mr. Helm moved to suspend the license.  Ms. Hubbell seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.


D.
Request to Withdraw Funds



1.
Lincoln Evergreen Memorial Park, Inc. d/b/a Lincoln Memorial Park (Miami)

Ms. Evans stated that at the December 1, 2005 meeting, the Board approved the withdrawal of $7500 to make the emergency repairs to the vaults and have the trees removed.  The Board requested copies of receipts for the amounts expended thus far and indicated that the remainder of the request would not be released until an estimate of all work to be completed had been submitted.

On February 28, 2006, Ms. Elyn Johnson provided photos and an itemized list of costs. However, no receipts have been submitted for the previous amount expended.  Ms. Johnson is requesting an additional $13,269.52 for the following:


$6713.52
Reimbursement to Ms. Johnson


$2100.00
4 Dumpsters


$1000.00
Vault replacement and repairs


$3456.00
Labor for 3 weeks

        $13,269.52

Mr. Chairman questioned whether the Department has received any receipts.

Ms. Evans stated not to her knowledge, but she would double check.

MOTION:  Mr. Helm moved to deny the request unless the Department is in possession of the receipts.  Ms. Thomas-DeWitt seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.


E.
Suspension Appearance

1. Waters Funeral Home (New Smyrna Beach) 

2. Waters, Lavell (New Smyrna Beach) 

Ms. Evans stated that Mr. Lavell Waters was ordered 6 months suspension, which expired March 29th.  The licensee was ordered to pay $1000 fine and costs in the amount of $123.31; neither of which have been paid.  Mr. Waters was also ordered to take and pass the Florida Laws and Rules Exam, of which he took and failed.  

During a conversation on March 6, 2006 between Lavell Waters and Tina Cummings, Financial Examiner, Mr. Water revealed that he had performed a funeral service on March 4, 2006 while his personal license and establishment license were still under suspension.  Mr. Waters advise that he thought his suspension had ended in November 2005.
Mr. Chairman questioned how many other funerals Mr. Waters performed.

Mr. Lavell Waters stated that was the only service he performed.  Mr. Waters requested more time to take care of the fine and the other requirements of the order.
Mr. Chairman stated that the license is suspended.

Mr. Waters stated that although he had not paid the fine, he was informed, in December ‘05, by the Department that the license was active and he could continue practicing.  In January ’06 he was advised by other agencies that his license had been suspended.  The Department then in turn informed Mr. Waters that his was active and that is the reason he performed the service.  After finding out that the license was suspended and the fines were not paid, Mr. Waters states that he has not practiced or performed any services.
Mr. Chairman questioned whether there is another FDIC.

Mr. Waters answered no.  No services are being performed at the funeral home.

Mr. Brandenburg questioned whether Mr. Waters was aware that his license and the funeral establishment license are both suspended.

Mr. Waters responded yes.

Mr. Chairman questioned what is done when the funeral home receives a funeral call.

Mr. Waters stated that he has been turning down calls.
Ms. Thomas-DeWitt questioned whether the Board sends out the orders via registered mail or whether the recipient has to sign for it.

Mr. Helm stated that Mr. Waters signed on January 4, 2005.

Mr. Jones stated that the date of the suspension is September 29, 2005.  Mr. Jones questioned what the recipient is noticed of at that time.
Mr. Waters stated that he contacted Mr. Hurst in March ’05 to find out when the fines should be paid.  Mr. Hurst advised that the fines could be paid whenever, but I final order would be issued requesting payment.
Ms. Thomas-DeWitt stated that Mr. Waters did not put forth any effort to pay the fines.

Mr. Waters stated that he was under the impression that the fines were more than what they actually were.  At that time, he was unable to pay, as he is currently working odd jobs.

Mr. Barnhart pointed out that Mr. Waters stated that he did not know the amount of the fine until he received the final order, but the final order does not mention the fine.
MOTION:  Col. Ballas moved to extend the suspension for one month pending receipt of monies for fines and the applicant must take and pass the Florida Laws and Rules examination.  Ms. Hubbell seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.
Mr. Barnhart added if Mr. Waters does not comply then the Board would have to bring new charges against him for failure to abide by a lawful order.
IV.
Disciplinary Proceedings
A. Baldauff Family Funeral Home and Dennis Paul Johnson 
DFS Case Nos. 83417-06-FC and 83412-06-FC

DBPR Case Nos. 2004-027050 and 2004-027020

Ms. Mendelson stated that this was a complaint filed by a family who wanted to see their loved one cremated.  This was scheduled in writing.  Unfortunately the body was cremated before the scheduled viewing.  The FDIC was Dennis Paul Johnson and he is responsible for this.  In the proposed consent order, Mr. Johnson agrees to pay $2500 in fines, which has been paid.  Baldauff was dismissed as there was no evidence of negligence or activity that warranted discipline of the establishment.  The Department recommends approval of the consent order.
MOTION:  Col. Ballas moved to approve the order.  Mr. Brandenburg seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

B. Brown, Donald R

DFS Case No. 83464-06-FC  

DBPR Case No. 2004-037840

Ms. Mendelson stated that the Department has withdrawn this item.
C. Charlow Funeral Home

DFS Case No. 83410-06-FC 

DBPR Case No. 2004-030835

Ms. Mendelson stated that Ms. Jonnye B Charlow sent fax on yesterday stating that she would be unable to attend today’s meeting.  Ms. Charlow has paid all of her fines and took the Florida Laws and Rules Exam.  There was a companion case to this one.  For some reason the final order to that case was entered against Ms. Charlow in December.  This is the exact same case and is against the funeral home.  Since Ms. Charlow has already paid the fine and taken her discipline, this order recommends that the case against the funeral home be dismissed.
MOTION:  Col. Ballas moved to approve the order.  Mr. Helm seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.
DISCUSSION:  Ms. Evans stated that Ms. Charlow did not pass the exam.
Ms. Mendelson stated that is irrelevant to this.  That would go toward Ms. Charlow’s discipline which was imposed back in September.  The jist of this final order is that it is the same case that was brought against Ms. Charlow and the funeral home.  Ms. Charlow is the responsible party, not the funeral home.
D.
Funeraria Latina Nacional, Inc.


DFS Case Nos. 83354-06-FC, 83355-06-FC and 83343-06-FC


DBPR Case Nos. 2001-06220, 2004-029680 and 2000-07826
G.  One Price Funerals

DFS Case No. 83342-06-FC 

DBPR Case No. 2000-07728

I.
Sheikh Rafayi Alkalifa

DFS Case No. 83344-06-FC 

DBPR Case No. 2004-030347

Ms. Mendelson stated that all of these cases relate to an incident that the Board was advised of at the last meeting regarding Frank Streeter.  The Department became aware of this case before the Bureau of Funeral and Cemetery Services’ COAs were transferred to the Department of Financial Services.  One Price Funerals had complaints against it, of which Law Enforcement became involved as there were bodies stacked up in the parking lot.  Some time after this case was prosecuted, it was discovered that Funeraria had a certificate of authority, which the Department revoked.  The Department assisted Law Enforcement in prosecuting Sheikh Rafayi Alkalifa (owner of the funeral homes) for offenses having to do with money that was not appropriately trusted.  The Department along with the State’s Attorney and attorney’s from DBPR worked on a settlement of the criminal case.  If Mr. Alkalifa does not comply with settlement, he goes to jail, which is something that the Board can not do.  Part of the agreement was that DBPR would dismiss all pending cases as of the date of the stipulation, January 3, 2005.  All of these cases are the cases that were pending at that time.  However, they are not all the cases that the Department is in possession of against this group.  The dismissal of these cases by the Board would make sure that the various Departments are in compliance with this agreement.  If the Board does not dismiss them, then the plea agreement is off.  The Department recommends that these cases be dismissed.
Mr. Brandenburg questioned whether this allows the respondents to practice.

Ms. Mendelson answered yes.

Ms. Hubbell questioned how the probable cause date for Sheikh Rafayi Alkalifa occurs after the date the agreement was entered.
Ms. Mendelson stated that the plea agreement states that “any case pending”, and that investigation was pending.

Mr. Chairman questioned what the Department is receiving in turn for allowing them to stay in business.

Ms. Mendelson responded that it is not the Department allowing them to remain in business.  He is on probation for 10 years.  The main thing that the Department is getting is restitution.  He is in compliance with his obligations under the certificate of authority.  Over $100k has been trusted in money that was missing.  In the final analysis, that is what the criminal charge against him had to do with.  If the Board does not approve this, there is no plea agreement; he is not on probation and must be refunded the monies back.  There would either have to be a new criminal prosecution or the Department would have to prosecute him for that.  The Department recommends that this order be adopted.  

There is a case pending that relates to this.  It is not against Mr. Rafayi.  However, the Department has the ability and the obligation to investigate and examine these funeral homes on an ongoing basis.  There is also a divorce going on here.  Some of these funeral homes will no longer belong to Mr. Rafayi.
Mr. Brandenburg questioned if the Board agrees to dismissal of the cases, complaints after what date would be acted upon.
Ms. Mendelson responded January 3, 2005.

Mr. Chairman questioned whether there are any complaints from that timeframe.

Ms. Mendelson stated that there is one, but it is not against any of these people.  It is against a FDIC of one of these at the time.

MOTION:  Ms. Hubbell moved to dismiss the cases.  Ms. Zippay seconded the motion, which passed with 3 dissenting votes.
DISCUSSION:  Mr. Chairman stated that he would hope that the Department closely monitors these individuals.

Mr. Jones questioned the status of the one complaint Ms. Mendelson referred to.

Mr. Mendelson responded that the Administrative Complaint has to be completed.

E. Grossberg & Son Memorial Chapel

DFS Case No. 81281-05-FC

Mr. Barnhart stated that this case started out as an informal proceeding.  Mr. Grossberg wanted a hearing, but he did not want it to be formal.  Although Mr. Grossberg’s certificate of authority was revoked on August 23, 2004, the Department still had jurisdiction over the matters of the preneed agreements.  On July 25, 2005 an Administrative Complaint was filed with 5 counts.  Under 120.57(2), there was an informal proceeding and the proposed recommended order was filed.  The Department’s Hearing Officer issued a written report and recommended order, which included a penalty of revocation.  The Department filed exceptions stating that the proper penalty would be public reprimand and a $2500 fine.  The final order proposes to adopt the findings of facts and the conclusions of law of the hearing officer with the Departments recommendation for penalty.  In the final order, there is one sentence being recommended for deletion:  “Although the Department suggested a public reprimand and a fine in the amount of $2500 in its Proposed Recommended Order, given Mr. Grossberg’s prior disciplinary history, and the severity of the violations it appears that revocation is the appropriate discipline in this case”.
Mr. Barnhart proposed that on the final order, at the end of page 3, at the beginning of #3:  “Except for the last sentence of paragraph 12, …”

Mr. Chairman questioned whether Mr. Grossberg would remain in business.

Ms. Mendelson responded that Mr. Grossberg is not in business.

Mr. Chairman questioned whether Mr. Grossberg could return to business.

Mr. Barnhart stated that the Department’s recommendation is not to revoke the license, but to impose a public reprimand and a fine.  All the refunds have been given to the consumers who requested them.  The Department would like to exercise jurisdiction over these matters at this point instead of revoking the license.

Ms. Mendelson stated that the COA license was revoked 2 years.  The Administrative Complaint was brought by the Department under its jurisdiction for the certificate of authority not the funeral establishment license.  The Department did not have such jurisdiction at the time.  Although the COA was revoked, the Department has continuing jurisdiction because Mr. Grossberg was to be fulfilling the contracts that he entered into.

MOTION:  Ms. Zippay moved to accept the order with Mr. Barnhart’s suggestions.  Mr. Jones seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

F. Lincoln Memorial Gardens of Ocala, Florida

DFS Case Nos. 68717-05-FC, 68239-05-FC, 78587-05-FC and 80705-05-FC

Ms. Mendelson stated that the Department issued an emergency order against Lincoln Memorial Gardens of Ocala.  In that emergency order, the Department imposed the discipline as it has the authority to take emergency action without the Board.  When the Department takes action on an emergency basis the law requires that it be followed up with an Administrative Complaint, which was filed after the panel found probable cause.  Lincoln then requested a formal hearing.  They have consented to the terms of the consent order, which are the terms of the emergency order.  For the period of this consent order, Lincoln can not sell any new plots, and can not bury anyone unless they already own the plot or are being buried next to their spouse or loved one.  

This all began when Lincoln Memorial gave their COA trust to the IRS to pay taxes.  One of the conditions is that the trust be restored.  According to their attorney, it has been restored and the Department has documentation of that.  Lincoln will be on probation for 2 years and paragraph 10 lists all things they must do to get off of probation.  An important consideration for the Department was that there be a new manager.  That would be a gentleman by the name of Algernon Cunningham, who is the son of the Cunninghams.  Mr. Cunningham, Sr. had a stroke and his wife had been running the funeral home.  The Department was very concerned with the ongoing basis of the cemetery.  According to the terms of this order, Mr. Algernon Cunningham will be running the cemetery or someone approved by the Department.
Mr. Ballas requested that he be recused as he served on the probable cause panel.
MOTION:  Mr. Brandenburg moved to accept the order.  Mr. Baxley seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

H.
Poitier Funeral Home, Inc. and Bernard C Poitier

DFS Case Nos. 83396-05-FC, 83480-05-FC and 83425-05-FC 

DBPR Case Nos. 2005-000799, 2005-003520 and 2003-004267

Ms. Mendelson stated that this case has a complex history.  There are outstanding fines and there is a revocation by the Board of one of the 2 funeral establishments involved.  The consent order involves 2 pending cases.  Case No. 83425 involves practicing funeral directing without a license.  
Case No. 83480 involves improper identification of remains, which is the case from the last Funeral Directors and Embalmers Board meeting where a final order of default was entered.  Attorneys for Poitier filed a notice of appeal on that, which is pending.  
Case No. 83396 involves aiding and abetting Poitier to practice without a license.  Mr. Poitier’s license was revoked some time back and there was a complaint that he was still acting as a funeral director.  That case was a criminal case where Mr. Poitier was found guilty.  This case is against the funeral home itself for allowing Mr. Poitier to practice.  The evidence is the criminal conviction.  Looking at the background of this case, the Department found that there were outstanding fines from the past.  One of which was $15k plus costs.  
The consent order requires that the $15k be paid over a period of 2 years, another administrative fine of $5k with costs of $353.57 be paid within 30 days and Mr. Poitier must refrain from all unlawful activities.

Mr. Brudnicki stated that this is a funeral establishment that performs 500 cases a year.  To continue to extend a fine that was assessed in ’04 is unacceptable.  The order needs amending to require that Poitier the fine a lot sooner than 2 years.
Ms. Mendelson stated that the $5000 has to be paid immediately and the rest of it is structured.  The idea there was that the Department would get the money.  If at any point, any of the conditions are not complied with, the license could be revoked.  
Mr. Barnhart questioned whether the final order provides for suspension of the one that was appealed and whether there has been a stay entered to stay the final order.

Ms. Mendelson responded that there has not been a stay entered.

Ms. Thomas-DeWitt questioned whether its safe to assume that the Department is going to allow Mr. Poitier to continue practicing in hopes of collecting the fines.

Ms. Mendelson stated the Board would be allowing the funeral home to remain open under any circumstances for probably a year because if the case is not settled, then it goes to trial and that is about how long it would take to bring it back before the Board.

Mr. Chairman questioned whether the Board could revoke the license if payment is not received with 6 months.
Ms. Mendelson stated that the first payment is due within 30 days.

Mr. Chairman stated that he is referring to the fine that is 2 years old, the $15k.

Ms. Mendelson stated that if any of these conditions are not met, the Department would submit an Administrative Complaint to the Probable Cause Panel for non compliance of the order.

Mr. Chairman stated that would be within 6 months as Mr. Poitier has 6 months to make the first $5k payment of the $15k.

Ms. Mendelson added that if Mr. Poitier does not make the other $5k within 30 days, the same thing could be done.

Mr. Brandenburg questioned whether automatic revocation could be a part of the consent order.

Ms. Mendelson stated if Poitier agreed to it.  An automatic suspension could be entered as this is specified in the consent order.
Mr. Helm stated that the Board is being too lenient.

Ms. Mendelson stated that it is the Board’s choice.  The Department presented the order because they felt this was the best way to try and resolve all these cases in on package in the timeliest fashion.

Mr. Helm questioned what happens if none of the monies are paid.

Ms. Mendelson stated that according to the stipulation, the Board could enter an immediate suspension order.  At that time, the cases would be forwarded to the collection agency and also an Administrative Complaint would be sent to the Probable Cause Panel.  The Board has the authority to revoke for non compliance of the order.  The Department could also do the same with the old cases, as they are now noncompliant.

Mr. Chairman stated that the Board is sending a message as to how this issues should be handled in the future.  The fact that nothing was done on something that happened back in ’04 is the reason Mr. Poitier has not paid.  

Ms. Mendelson stated that her report shows that this is exactly what the Department is doing on.  Letters have been sent out for overdue monies stating that either pay up or the license would be suspended.  All consent orders and final orders from the Department state if not paid within 30 days, your license will be suspended.

Mr. Brandenburg questioned whether Poitier has received such notice.

Ms. Mendelson stated that it is in the consent order.
Mr. Brandenburg suggested suspending the locations until fines are paid.

Ms. Mendelson stated that issue is not before the Board.   Poitier requested a formal hearing and agreed to the consent order.  If the Board does not accept this consent order, this issue would go back to the Division of Administrative Hearings and up to the 1st District Court of Appeals.  The Board could authorize a counterproposal.
Mr. Barnhart stated that the provision in the consent agreement states that the appeal would be dismissed.

Ms. Mendelson stated that appeal pertains to the funeral establishment that was revoked by default by the Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers.

Mr. Chairman suggested adding a stipulation that states the remainder of the fine must be paid within 6 months.

Ms. Mendelson stated that the Board could authorize her to submit another proposal stating that the $15k fine be paid within 6 months, which would be a rejection of this consent order and if Poitier rejects the counterproposal then this goes back to the Division of Administrative Hearings on appeal.
MOTION:  Mr. Baxley moved to approve the order contingent upon acceptance of a counterproposal to have the $15,000 paid within 6 months and if Respondent does not comply the license would automatically be revoked.  Ms. Thomas-DeWitt seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.
DISCUSSION:  Ms. Mendelson suggested that the Board authorizes her or Ms. Evans to sign on behalf of the Board if that condition is met to save time.  The Board authorized Ms. Mendelson to sign the Consent Order on behalf of the Board if the Board’s counter proposal is accepted.

***BREAK 11:45 – 12:00***
***PREVIOUS ITEM REVISITED***

III.
Old Business

A.  Informal Hearings
1.  
Application for Embalmer Apprentice



a.
Carmen Chandler, Embalmer Apprentice (Pensacola)

Mr. Chairman stated that the this item was addressed prior to the arrival of the Applicant, so the Board agreed to readdress the item.
MOTION: A motion was made to vacate the prior action taken, which passed unanimously.

Ms. Evans stated that on February 9, 2006 the Board denied an application for licensure to Carmen R. Chandler, an applicant for Funeral/Embalmer Apprentice based on a criminal history. 

Applicant answered, “Yes” to Question # 1 in Background Information - “Have you been convicted or found guilty, in any jurisdiction, regardless of adjudication, of a felony or misdemeanor?”

The applicant has submitted documentation in response to Question #1 for consideration.

On February 24, 2006 Department of Financial Services received a letter requesting an informal hearing for reconsideration of a Board’s decision.

Ms. Carmen Chandler stated that the criminal history consisted of misdemeanors that were all dismissed by the Circuit Court of Escambia County, with the exception of 2 of the cases that were combined.  Although this was a 3rd degree felony,  the Judge put Ms. Chandler on Pre Trial Release because she had no prior criminal history.  Ms. Chandler provided documentation stating that she had completed the program within 10 months, upon returning to court on June 6, 2006 everything would be dismissed and removed from her record.  Ms. Chandler also provided documentation from the Pre Trial officer showing that the program was successfully completed and is just waiting to return to court on June 6th to have the charges completely removed from her record.
Mr. Brandenburg questioned where Ms. Chandler is currently serving her embalmer apprenticeship.

Ms. Chandler responded that she is currently working at Trahan Mortuary and Family Funeral Home in Pensacola, Florida.
Mr. Brandenburg questioned at what capacity.

Ms. Chandler stated that she works in the embalming facility, assists with removals and family services.  Ms. Chandler stated that she had recommendations from 2 other funeral homes in Pensacola that she volunteers for.

Mr. Helm stated that the documentation he reviewed indicated that one of the conditions was not completed.  

Ms. Chandler stated that everything required of her has been completed, such as paying the fine and completing the Life Management Skills class.
Mr. Helm questioned whether the class was to be taken up until June.

Ms. Chandler responded that she was given 10 months to complete it, but she finished early.  

Mr. Brandenburg questioned what Ms. Chandler does in the embalming facility.

Ms. Chandler stated that she assists Mr. Dennis Trahan with embalmings, preparing the body, sanitation, etc.  Ms. Chandler added that during the time when her application was submitted to the Department, she was enrolled at St Petersburg taking Mortuary Science.  All of the HIV courses that were required have been completed.
Ms. Thomas-DeWitt questioned whether all charges have been dismissed with the exception of the class.

Ms. Chandler stated that she plead nolo contendere and the Court ordered her to pay a fine and attend a class within 10 months.  Although the class has been completed and the fine has been paid, Ms. Chandler is not scheduled to reappear on the court’s docket until June 6th.

Ms. Thomas-DeWitt stated that along with the crimes, the Board is looking at Ms. Chandler’s good moral character and would like to know whether Ms. Chandler would like to speak on that.
Ms. Chandler stated that she never went to court for any of the misdemeanors, as they were dismissed.  The 2 felonies in question are combined.  Ms. Chandler rented some furniture and moved out of the State of Florida with the furniture, which is a violation of law.  The rental company charged an out of state fee and the furniture had to be returned.  
Ms. Thomas-DeWitt questioned the incident with the worthless check.

Ms. Chandler stated that she just had to pay the checks and was never ordered to court.  The were paid through the worthless check division.  If you look at the timeframe, a lot of this occurred while Ms. Chandler was moving back and forth and changing bank accounts.

Mr. Brandenburg suggested denying the application until the Department receives the results of the meeting with the Judge.  At that time, the Board would reconsider at the June 29th meeting.
MOTION:  Mr. Helm moved to deny the application until the applicant meets with the Judge in June; the applicant does not have to reappear before the Board.  Ms. Thomas-DeWitt seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

V.
Applications for Preneed Sales Agent


A. Recommended for Approval  - See Addendum A

Ms. Evans presented for approval the list of applicants on Addendum A.

Mr. Baxley disclosed his affiliation with Hiers Memorial Chapel, Inc.
MOTION:  Col. Ballas moved to approve the applications.  Mr. Helm seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

B. Recommended for Denial – See Addendum B

Ms. Evans stated that there were no applicants for denial.
C. Recommended for Consideration

1.
Grimes, Mary E (Sponsoring PNL: Fuller Funeral Services, Inc.)

Ms. Evans stated that on the application received by the Department on December 29, 2005, the applicant answered “Yes” to Applicant Background Questions # 2 and #3:  “Has the PSA applicant ever been convicted or entered a plea in the nature of no contest, (a) regardless of whether adjudication was entered or withheld by the court in which the case was prosecuted, and (b) regardless of whether the criminal conduct occurred inside or outside the state of Florida, and (c) regardless of whether the criminal prosecution occurred in a Florida state court or the courts of another state, the United States, or foreign country, of or to any of the following crimes: (2) Any other felony which was committed within the 20 years immediately preceding the date of this on-line application; or (3) Any other crime, whether a misdemeanor or felony, committed within the 5 years immediately preceding the date of this on-line application?”

The applicant has submitted documentation in response to Applicant Background Questions as follows:

Case #:
  
04-05779-MMA, County Court, Collier County, FL.


  
July 22, 2004

Offense:  
DUI – Alcohol or Drugs First Offense

Pled:

No Contest

Sentence:
12 months probation, 50 hours of community service, Drivers License revoked/ suspended for 360 days, $500 fine

Disposition:
Probation terminated on February 7, 2005.

MOTION:  Col. Ballas moved to approve the application.  Ms. Hubbell seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

2.
Hilerio, Justo (Sponsoring PNL: The Simplicity Plan, Inc.)

Ms. Evans stated that On the application received by the Department on March 1, 2006, the applicant answered “Yes” to Applicant Background Questions # 2 and #3:  “Has the PSA applicant ever been convicted or entered a plea in the nature of no contest, (a) regardless of whether adjudication was entered or withheld by the court in which the case was prosecuted, and (b) regardless of whether the criminal conduct occurred inside or outside the state of Florida, and (c) regardless of whether the criminal prosecution occurred in a Florida state court or the courts of another state, the United States, or foreign country, of or to any of the following crimes: (2) Any other felony which was committed within the 20 years immediately preceding the date of this on-line application; or (3) Any other crime, whether a misdemeanor or felony, committed within the 5 years immediately preceding the date of this on-line application?”

The applicant has submitted documentation in response to Applicant Background Questions as follows:

Case #:
  
90019436TC, County Court, Palm Beach County, FL.


  
January 29, 1991

Offense:  
Failure to Appear for Arraignment

Ref DUI – Property Damage/Personal Injury, First Offense

July 9, 1990

Pled:

No Contest

Sentence:
Drivers License revoked/suspended for 180 days, DWI Course

Disposition:
Completion of DWI course, License Reinstated 4/19/91

Ms. Huggins disclosed her affiliation with The Simplicity Plan.
MOTION:  Mr. Brandenburg moved to approve the application.  Col. Ballas seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

VI. 
Preneed License Initial Applications (Formerly COAs)

A.
Buggs-Bellamy Funeral Services, Inc. (Jacksonville)

Ms. Evans stated that Department received the application on February 28, 2006. A deficiency letter was issued by the Department on March 22nd. All deficiencies were resolved on April 5th. The ownership of $116,486 outstanding preneed contracts written by staff of James N. Davis is disputed by James N. Davis, Sr. Approval of this application does not acknowledge nor imply concurrence of ownership of the contracts. Ownership of the contracts is a civil dispute that should be resolved outside the Department and Board.

The Applicant’s financial statements for the period ended December 31, 2005 reflect the following:

               Preneed Contracts 
= $  116,486                             



Required Net Worth 
= $    20,000


Reported Net Worth
= $    28,772

The Applicant created the business in January 2005 and an establishment license was issued in February 2005. However, due to remodeling the funeral home was not opened until August 2005. Therefore, the income statement covers the January through December period.  The negative $36,678 Retained Earnings on the balance sheet reflects the output for remodeling expenses prior to the August opening.

The Applicant will use the pre-approved Funeral Services, Inc. (FSI) 1993 First Florida Trust Agreement (BB&T) and pre-arranged funeral agreement.

Staff recommends approval of the application. 
MOTION:  Col. Ballas moved to approve the application.  Mr. Baxley seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

B.
Loyless Funeral Homes, LLC d/b/a Loyless Funeral Home (Land O’Lakes)

Ms. Evans stated that Department received the application on March 1, 2006. No deficiencies were noted on the application. The Applicant purchased Loyless Funeral Home, a former branch of Keystone Florida, Inc. The funeral establishment license was approved at the February 9, 2006 Board meeting and was issued on February 13, 2006.

The balance sheet for the period ending January 31, 2006 and income statement for the one-month period ended January 31, 2006 reflect the following:

               Preneed Contracts 
= $   688,290                 



Required Net Worth 
= $     80,000


Reported Net Worth
= $   428,007

The balance sheet reflects non-compete and goodwill assets related to the purchase in the amount of $1,073,234. The current portion of long-term notes payable is $392,036.  Mr. John E. Loyless, managing member, submitted a letter stating that in 1999 as a funeral director, he was fined and reprimanded for untimely filing of death certificates. He states that the fine was paid and there have been no adverse occurrences since. The Department records verify his statement.

The Applicant has a preneed branch application on this agenda pending approval of this preneed license.

The Applicant will use the pre-approved Funeral Services, Inc. (FSI) 1993 Trust Agreement (SouthTrust Asset Management Co.) and pre-arranged funeral agreement.

MOTION:  Mr. Helm moved to approve the application.  Mr. Jones seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

C.
Mitchell-Dinan Funeral Home, LLC (Winter Haven)

Ms. Evans stated that Department received the application on February 22, 2006. No deficiencies were noted on the application. The Applicant purchased Trinity Funeral & Cremation Center, formerly owned by Lew Hall & Associates d/b/a: Gentry-Morrison Funeral Homes. The funeral establishment license was approved at the February 9, 2006 Board Meeting and issued on February 10, 2006.

The balance sheet for the period ending December 31, 2005 and income statement from October 25 to December 31, 2005 reflect the following:

               Preneed Contracts 
= $   556,402                 



Required Net Worth 
= $     60,000


Reported Net Worth
= $     97,842

The balance sheet reflects a $95,727 goodwill asset related to the purchase. Mr. Francis T. Dinan, Jr. submitted an adverse licensing action history that reflected a $5,000fine paid in 2004 to the State Board of Mortuary Science in New Jersey stemming from the operation of an unlicensed mortuary. An explanation of the violation is included in the history.

The Applicant will use the pre-approved Funeral Services, Inc. (FSI) 1993 Trust Agreement (BB&T) and pre-arranged funeral agreement.

Staff recommends approval of this application.

MOTION:  Col. Ballas moved to approve the application.  Ms. Huggins seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

VII.
Preneed License Branch Applications (Formerly COABs)  

A. Recommended for Approval – See Addendum C 

Ms. Evans presented for approval the list of applicants on Addendum C.

MOTION:  Mr. Helm moved to approve the application.  Mr. Brandenburg seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

VIII.
Request for Extension/ Waiver of Late Penalty

A.
Sea Pines Memorial Gardens, Inc. d/b/a: Sea Pines Memorial Gardens (Edgewater) 

Ms. Evans stated that the licensee’s last fiscal year end date was May 31, 2005. In accordance with Chapter 497.453(5), Florida Statutes, financial statements for preneed license renewal are due within 3 months of the after the end of the licensee’s fiscal period, or by August 31, 2005. 

On October 19, 2005 the Department received the financial statements and letter from Ms. Betty Ann Tucker, Comptroller, advising the Department that due to a delay in receipt of trust statements from its trustee, the CPA was not able to prepare financial statements in a timely manner. A letter from the trustee to the Department was included which states that statements had been provided to the licensee but not in a traditional format as cumulative. 

The licensee requests waiver or leniency on the penalty for late filing. Under the 2005 late fee schedule, the delinquent penalty for statements filed between 31 to 90 days late is $500.

MOTION:  Ms. Thomas-DeWitt moved to deny the request.  Mr. Baxley seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

B.
The Simplicity Plan, Inc. (Altamonte Springs)

Ms. Evans stated that licensee’s last fiscal year end date was October 31, 2005. In accordance with Chapter 497.453(5), Florida Statutes, financial statements for preneed license renewal are due within 3 months of the after the end of the licensee’s fiscal period, or by January 31, 2006. 

On February 2, 2006 the Department received a letter from Mr. Kevin Flores, Trust Administration Supervisor, advising the Department that the financial statements were not yet complete. Additional time was required to ensure proper financial statements in accordance with GAAP. An extension of sixty days was requested for filing the statements, approval of which would entail abatement of the late penalty. 

The sixty-day period ended March 31, 2006.  The financial statements were received April 13th. 

Ms. Huggins disclosed her affiliation with The Simplicity Plan.
MOTION:  Mr. Baxley moved to deny the request.  Ms. Thomas-DeWitt seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

IX.
Consumer Protection Trust Fund Claims

A. Recommended for Approval - See Addendum D

Ms. Evans presented the claims to be approved totaling $4,910.72.  

MOTION:  Mr. Helm moved to approve the claims.  Ms. Huggins seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

B. Recommended for Denial

1. 
Necron Cremation Services (Beneficiary: Dorothy F Murch)

Ms. Evans stated that the following Consumer Protection Trust Fund Proof of Claim and Disbursement Request is being presented to the Board for denial. 

Purchaser: 




Dorothy F. Murch

Beneficiary: 




Dorothy F. Murch

Claimant:




Beverly L. Taylor

Contract Amount:



$523.19

Amount Paid on Contract:


$523.19

Amount Trusted:



$    0.00

Amount Requested by Claimant:                            $523.19

Amount Recommended by Staff:                            $    0.00

On August 3, 1989, Dorothy Murch purchased a pre-need contract with Necron Cremation Services and the contract was paid in full.  Mrs. Murch had since re-located outside of the state and then passed away.  Beverly Taylor, niece, did not contact SCI at the time of her aunt’s death since it occurred outside of Florida; therefore, she paid another provider for services in Ohio.  Mrs. Taylor is now seeking restitution from the Preneed Funeral Contract Consumer Protection Trust Fund for the amount of her aunt’s SCI contract.

Staff contacted SCI and was able to verify that Mrs. Murch did have a valid contract and since SCI was not able to fulfill the contract, they would issue a refund to Mrs. Taylor upon her providing them with a letter of cancellation and a copy of the death certificate.  Staff also contacted Mrs. Taylor and informed her that a refund may be obtained from SCI for the amount of her aunt’s contract.  Therefore, staff recommends denial of this claim.

MOTION:  Col. Ballas moved to deny the claim.  Mr. Baxley seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

X.
Trust Agreement

A.
Preconstruction Mausoleum Trust Agreement and Draw Schedule

1. Riverside Memorial Park (Tequesta)

Ms. Evans presented the Preconstruction Mausoleum Trust Agreement and Draw Schedule

The agreement establishes a Preconstruction Mausoleum Trust Agreement with U.S. Bank N.A. (formerly Wachovia), to be used by Riverside Memorial Park cemetery for the purpose of funding the sale of 580 preconstruction mausoleum crypts. 

Staff recommends approval with the following revisions made within 60 days of approval:

Article X: Reports, paragraph 2: - Revise Department name to “Department of Financial Services”. Revise Board name to ”Board of Funeral, Cemetery and Consumer Services”.

MOTION:  Col. Ballas moved to approve the agreement contingent upon the revisions being made within 60 days of approval.  Mr. Baxley seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

XI.
Preneed Trust Transfer Requests

A. Charles and Stacie Segal, Inc. d/b/a Segal Funeral Home – Beth David Chapel (Tampa)

                  
1. 
Preneed Trust Transfer – Simplicity Plan 1997 Master Preneed Trust (SunTrust Bank) to FSI 1993 Trust Agreement (BB&T).

Ms. Evans presented the Preneed Trust Transfer – Simplicity Plan 1997 Master Preneed Trust (SunTrust Bank) to FSI 1993 Trust Agreement (BB&T).

The Applicant requests approval for the transfer of the Preneed Trust Funds of Segal Funeral Home – Beth David Chapel from SunTrust Bank to the BB&T (Branch Banking & Trust Co.)/Funeral Services, Inc. (FSI) 1993 Trust Agreement. Charles and Stacie Segal, Inc. acquired Beth David Funeral Chapel, a former branch of The Simplicity Plan, Inc., and the preneed license was approved at the August 25, 2005 Board meeting.
Staff recommends approval of the above referenced request contingent upon certification of the transfer being received by the Department within 60 days of the Board meeting date.

Compliance with other State and Federal regulations is the responsibility of the Certificate-holder.

MOTION:  Mr. Brandenburg moved to approve the request contingent upon certification of the transfer being received by the Department within 60 days.  Mr. Baxley seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.
B. Hodges Family Funeral Home, Inc. (Dade City)

1. 
Preneed Trust Transfer – (Richardson Funeral Home) U.S. Bank to FSI 1993 Trust Agreement (BB&T)

2. 
Preneed Trust Transfer – (Oakley Funeral Home) U.S. Bank to FSI 1993 Trust Agreement (BB&T)

3. 
Preneed Trust Transfer (Ch. 639) – (Oakley Funeral Home) U.S. Bank to FSI 1988 Master Trust Agreement (BB&T)

4. 
Care & Maintenance Trust Transfer – (d/b/a: Chapel Hill Gardens) U.S. Bank to FSI 1994 Master Care & Maintenance Trust Agreement (BB&T)

Ms. Evans presented the aforementioned (4) trust transfer requests.
Staff recommends approval of the above referenced request contingent upon certification of the transfer being received by the Department within 60 days of the Board meeting date.

Compliance with other State and Federal regulations is the responsibility of the Certificate-holder.

MOTION:  Col. Ballas moved to approve the request contingent upon certification of the transfer being received by the Department within 60 days.  Mr. Jones seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

C. Work & Son, Inc. (Tampa) 

1.  
Preneed Trust Transfer – (Bradenton Funeral Home) U.S. Bank to FSI 1993 Trust Agreement (BB&T)                            

2.  
Preneed Trust Transfer – (Rhodes Funeral Home) U.S. Bank to FSI 1993 Trust Agreement (BB&T)

3.  
Preneed Trust Transfer (Ch. 639) – (Royal Palm North Funeral Chapel) U.S. Bank to FSI 1988 Master Trust Agreement (BB&T)

                   
 4. 
Merchandise Trust Transfer – (Royal Palm Cemetery) U.S. Bank to FSI 1993 Trust Agreement (BB&T)

                    
5. 
Merchandise Trust Transfer – (Royal Palm Cemetery North) U.S. Bank to FSI 1993 Trust Agreement (BB&T)


6. 
Care & Maintenance Trust Transfer - (Royal Palm Cemetery) – U.S. Bank to FSI 1994 Master Care & Maintenance Trust Agreement (BB&T)


7. 
Care & Maintenance Trust Transfer - (Royal Palm Cemetery North) – U.S. Bank to FSI 1994 Master Care & Maintenance Trust Agreement (BB&T)

8. 
Care & Maintenance Trust Transfer - (Sarasota Memorial Park) – U.S. Bank to FSI 1994 Master Care & Maintenance Trust Agreement (BB&T)

9. 
Preconstruction Trust Transfer - (Sarasota Memorial Park) – U.S. Bank to FSI 1995 Master Preconstruction Trust Agreement (BB&T)

Ms. Evans presented the aforementioned (9) trust transfer requests.

Staff recommends approval of the above referenced request contingent upon certification of the transfer being received by the Department within 60 days of the Board meeting date.

Compliance with other State and Federal regulations is the responsibility of the Certificate-holder.

Mr. Helm stated that Work and Son has not renewed their license in 3 different areas, for the cemetery, in 2005 and 2006.  Mr. Helm questioned whether the Board should allow them to transfer money.

Ms. Wendy Wiener stated that matter is being addressed within the stipulation being worked on with Ms. Mendelson.  Work and Son allowed its certificate of authority to become inactive and are currently working with the Department and additionally providing some explanation to Ms. Evans regarding the renewals.  That would be contemplated pursuant to some consent orders that are expected to be presented to the Board for approval at the next meeting.  However, that has no impact on the appropriateness of transferring already existing trust monies into FSI, which has a completely compliant trust agreement.
Mr. Helm responded that it is not the Bank transferring the money, it is Work and Son.
Ms. Wiener agreed.  The money never enters the hands of Work and Son.  The money would transfer directly from the other bank into the hands of FSI.

Ms. Evans questioned whether it is possible to have Work and Son pay the cemetery renewal for ’05 and ’06.

Ms. Wiener responded that Mr. Work had just left a few moments ago.  It is presumed that he can.  The reason he has not done so already is because it is contemplated in the settlement agreement, and Mr. Work is waiting for that process to come to a conclusion.

Mr. Chairman questioned whether it is crucial to have the monies transferred prior to the fees being paid.

Mr. Bill Williams responded absolutely.

Ms. Wiener stated that one thing has nothing to do with the other.  These are already existing trust funds resulting from care and maintenance money and merchandise money from pre-existing contracts.  
Mr. Chairman questioned whether the Department is okay with this.

Ms. Evans stated that the Department is pretty upset that Mr. Work is delinquent on his license fee, but is okay with the transfer.

MOTION:  Mr. Helm moved to approve the request contingent upon certification of the transfer being received by the Department within 60 days as well as renewal fees and late fees being paid within 60 days.  Mr. Jones seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

XII.
Performance Bond

A. 6393430 SCI Funeral Services of Florida, Inc., d/b/a Dade Memorial Park, Community Mausoleum, Unit #10 (Miami) 

Ms. Evans presented Project: Community Mausoleum, Unit #10  – 544 casket spaces (160 single crypts, 192 tandem crypts).

Cost:  $363,000

Bond Amount:  $399,300

Bond Number:  6393430

Surety Company:  Safeco Insurance Company of America

Surety Rating:  A

Staff recommends approval of the above Performance Bond. 

Compliance with other State and Federal regulations is the responsibility of the Certificate-holder.

MOTION:  Mr. Jones moved to approve the bond.  Ms. Huggins seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

XIII.
Ratification List

A. Application to Become a Training Facility

1.
Clary-Glenn Funeral Homes Inc.  (Defuniak Springs)

Ms. Evans reported that the funeral director in charge is Joel T Glen.  The applicant reports the annual number of embalmings is 150 and funeral directing is 150.

MOTION:  Mr. Baxley moved to approve the application.  Col. Ballas seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.


2.
James C. Boyd Funeral Home (Ft. Myers)

Ms. Evans reported that the funeral director in charge is Herman C Dorsey.  The applicant reports the annual number of embalmings is 73 and funeral directing is 79.

MOTION:  Mr. Baxley moved to approve the application.  Col. Ballas seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.


3.
Long Granberry Funeral Services, Inc.  (Marianna)

Ms. Evans reported that the funeral director in charge is Gwen S Long.  The applicant reports the annual number of embalmings is 75 and funeral directing is 70.

MOTION:  Ms. Thomas-DeWitt moved to approve the application.  Col. Ballas seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.
B.
Applications for Florida Laws and Rules Examination – See Addendum E

1.
Funeral Director and Embalmer


a.
Internships



1.
Lotz, Joseph P

            
 2.    Spencer, Adrianne E


b.
Endorsements



1.
Parker, Steven T

             
2.   Robertson, Maria

Ms. Evans presented the applicants for the Florida Laws and Rules Exam.

MOTION:  Mr. Helm moved to approve the applicants.  Ms. Hubbell seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.


C.
Applications for Funeral Director and Embalmer Intern – See Addendum F

 
       1.   Bedenbaugh, Aimee M

                     
2.   Lucas, Darryll F

Ms. Evans presented the applicants for the Funeral Director and Embalmer Intern.

MOTION:  Ms. Hubbell moved to approve the applicants.  Ms. Huggins seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.


D.
Applications for Embalmer Apprentice – See Addendum G

1. Amentt, Ruth A

2. Griffin, Detroit Jr

3. Juliano, Patrick J

4. McLaughlin, Jennifer M

Ms. Evans presented the applicants for Embalmer Intern.

MOTION:  Mr. Jones moved to approve the applicants.  Ms. Huggins seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.


E.
Application for Centralized Embalming Facility 

1.
Sarah L Carter’s Funeral Home Inc (Jacksonville)

Ms. Evans stated that the Applicant submitted the application on January 12, 2006.  The application was not complete and a deficiency letter was sent to the applicant.  All deficient information was completed on March 6, 2006.  The fingerprint card for the principal, Sarah L Carter, was submitted and returned no criminal history.

MOTION:  Mr. Brandenburg moved to approve the applicant.  Ms. Hubbell seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.


F.
Application for Cinerator Facility

1.
Fuller Miller Funeral Services Inc d/b/a Fuller-Cape Coral Funeral Home- Cremation Service

Ms. Evans stated that the Applicant submitted application on March 8, 2006.  Application was not complete and a deficiency letter was sent.  All deficient information was returned on March 22, 2006.  The fingerprint cards for the principal, Michael S Fuller, were processed when Mr. Fuller applied for a Funeral Establishment license earlier this year and returned with no criminal history.
MOTION:  Mr. Jones moved to approve the applicant.  Mr. Baxley seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

G. Application for Funeral Establishment

1.
SCI Funeral Services of Florida, Inc. d/b/a A Cremation Center at Horizon Funeral Home (Fort Myers)

This application was withdrawn.

H.
Continuing Education Provider Approval 

1. Pinellas County Funeral Home Association (St. Petersburg)

Ms. Evans presented the application for Continuing Education Provider Approval.

MOTION:  Mr. Brandenburg moved to approve the applicants.  Ms. Thomas-DeWitt seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.



I.
Continuing Education Course Approvals – See Addendum H

1. Academy of Graduate Embalmers Of Georgia, Inc. #0001409

2. Henry Lewis Scurry Jr. #0001443

3. International Cemetery and Funeral Association #0001415

4. International Order of The Golden Rule #0001440

5. Jewish Funeral Directors of America #0001404

6. MLJ Marketing #0001419


7.
National Funeral Directors Association #0001441


8.
National Funeral Directors & Morticians Association #0001755


9.
Practicum Strategies #0001403


10.
Selected Independent Funeral Homes #0001411


11.
Thanos Institute #0001397

MOTION:  Ms. Hubbell moved to approve the courses.  Mr. Jones seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

XIV.
Request for Refund

A. Bright, Wayne

Ms. Evans stated that Mr. Bright submitted a renewal form and fee for FE-3662 and FE-6176, which was posted to DBPR site on September 21, 2005.

Mr. Bright was informed that his payment was late and to renew his license he would have to send the late fee of $50.00 dollars for each of the license his was trying to renew.

On January 10, 2006 The Division of Funeral, Cemetery and Consumer Services received a check for $100.00, from Mr. Bright, for the late fees for the renewal of his FE license, as well as Esther Badges.

The Department’s records reflect other late renewals for Mr. Bright.

Renewal Date:





Date Received:

08-31-03 02-04-04

08-31-01 09-14-01

The Department records also indicate a check in the amount of $305.00, which was submitted for the renewal, was returned for insufficient funds.  As of the current date, this check remains outstanding.  In addition, a fine in the amount of $723.84 resulting from case #9503369, final order dated June 25, 1996, was not paid until September 19, 2001.

MOTION:  Mr. Brandenburg moved to deny the request.  Ms. Huggins seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

XV.
Applications for Consideration

A. Applications for Florida Laws and Rules Examination – Funeral Director and Embalmer

1.
Brown, Van G Sr. (Intern)

Ms. Evans stated that the Applicant answered “No” to Section 11, in Criminal History Question 11.-“Have you, the applicant herein, ever plead guilty, been convicted, or entered a plea in the nature of no contest, regardless of whether adjudication was entered or withheld by the court in which the case prosecuted, in the courts of Florida or another state of the United States or a foreign country, regarding any crime indicated below:”  

The applicant answered no to this question, however the fingerprint report indicated there was a felony charge and the Applicant entered a pre-trial diversion program for the charge.

Case #          0821322

Offense:       False Insurance Claims

Pled:             Not Guilty

Sentence:      Pre-Trial Diversion Program

Disposition:  Nolle Prossed 

Mr. Van Brown stated that he had a tenant residing at his residence during the time of the Hurricane.  The tenant claimed to have lost some items.  The insurance adjuster came out to file the report.  Mr. Brown, being the homeowner, signed and submitted the report without reviewing it.
Mr. Helm questioned why Mr. Brown answered “No” to Question 11.

Mr. Brown stated that he was under impression that the charge was dismissed and would not appear on his record.

Mr. Helm questioned whether the tenant was a renter.

Mr. Brown answered yes.  The tenant was living there alongside Mr. Brown.  There were some claims that items were taken but there was no supporting documentation to prove the claims.
Mr. Helm questioned why Mr. Brown was charged.

Mr. Brown stated that the he was charged because the house was in his name and he was the owner.

Mr. Brandenburg questioned whether all 4 arrests resulted from that same incident.

Mr. Brown responded yes.

Ms. Thomas-DeWitt questioned whether Mr. Brown was under the impression that he had no criminal history although there are 4 violations on his record.

Mr. Brown stated that is what he was advised by his attorney.

Ms. Thomas-DeWitt stated that the ultimate responsible to check his record was Mr. Brown’s.  The offenses are not the real concern, but the idea that Mr. Brown answered “No” to the question makes his character questionable.
MOTION:  Ms. Hubbell moved to approve the applicant.  Ms. Zippay seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

2. 
Graziano, Edward (Endorsement)

Ms. Evans stated that the Applicant answered “Yes” Question 1, in Background Information 1.-“Have you ever been convicted of a crime, found guilty, or entered a plea of guilty or nolo contendere (no contest) to, even if you received a withhold of adjudication?”

Applicant submitted application and answered “Yes” to the question; however the applicant did not provide all offenses on forms supplied.  

Case #          SO1058243

Offense:       Obstructing or Resisting an Officer W/O Violence

Pled:             Guilty

Sentence:      Suspended Sentence, Time Credited (2 days), Court Cost $200

Disposition:  Adjudication Withheld 

Case #          SO1098596

Offense:       Aggravated Stalking

Pled:             Guilty

Sentence:   Suspended Sentence, Probation (1 year), Time Credited (12 days), Fine $402, Court Cost $250

Disposition:  Adjudication Withheld

Case#            3389L11

Offense:       Following MV Too Closely, Aggravated Unlic Oper Vehic 3, Disorderly                        

                     Conduct

Pled:

Sentence:      $310 Fine, Conditional Discharge

Disposition:  Guilty

Case#            K89083342   

Offense:        Dis/Con Fight/Violent Behavior

Pled:              Guilty

Sentence:       10 days or Unspecified Fine

Disposition:   Guilty

Mr. Edward Graziano stated that due to recent job applications that he had submitted, he knew by answering “yes” a background investigation would be conducted.  Accordingly, that is why he did not list everything on the application.

Mr. Graziano stated that all of the offenses are domestic and the result of a horrible divorce.  One day, he and his wife had an argument and she walked out.  Two days later Mrs. Graziano returned with the Police.  Mr. Graziano was has harassed by the Police.  He tried to speak with his wife and was arrested for obstructing justice.
Mr. Chairman questioned in what year these offenses occurred.

Mr. Graziano stated that all of the offenses occurred in 2005.

Mr. Chairman questioned whether there was anything prior to ’05.

Mr. Graziano responded that he has been a licensed funeral director for 30 years and is still licensed in New York.  Mr. Graziano has never had any charges relating to funeral directing brought against him.

Mr. Brandenburg questioned where Mr. Graziano is currently employed.

Mr. Graziano stated that he is currently selling water systems.  A couple of months ago he was selling aluminum gutters.  Mr. Graziano requested that the Board please reinstate his license as he is under financial distress for not being able to work as a funeral director.
Mr. Chairman questioned the 1992 offense in Pasco County for parental kidnapping.

Mr. Graziano stated that he brought his 2 sons from Pennsylvania to Florida, but was extradited back to Pennsylvania.  This was another case involving his wife.  They had broken up, but once they got back together, the charges were dismissed.  All of the charges before the Board have been dismissed.  Even the divorce case has been dismissed and the Grazianos are going for counseling next month.

Mr. Helm stated that Florida did not revoke Mr. Graziano’s license.

Mr. Graziano stated that he let his Florida license go when he moved back to New York in 1995, as he did not think he would return.  
Ms. Thomas-DeWitt stated that there was a drug charge in June 1995.

Mr. Graziano stated that he was in the car with someone who was in possession of drugs.  Mr. Graziano was the driver of the vehicle and therefore was charged along with the passenger.
Ms. Thomas-DeWitt stated that the charge was for cocaine possession and attempted purchase.

Mr. Graziano stated that he had no knowledge that the other person got out of the car to make a purchase.

Mr. Fred Richard stated that he has known Mr. Graziano for over 30 years.  All dealings have been up and above professional in every way.  When Mr. Graziano had a funeral home up North, he had dealings with Mr. Richard, Florida Mortuary.  
Mr. Chairman questioned when Mr. Graziano let his license lapse.
Mr. Graziano stated that he did not renew in 1995.

MOTION:  Ms. Hubbell moved to approve the applicant.  Ms. Zippay seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

3.
Ledsome, Brian F (Endorsement)

Ms. Evans stated that the Applicant answered “Yes” to Section 11a. Criminal History Questions-“Have you, the applicant herein, ever plead guilty, been convicted, or entered a plea in the nature of no contest, regardless of whether adjudication was entered or withheld by the court in which the case was prosecuted, in the courts of Florida or another state of the United States or a foreign country, regarding any crime indicated below:”   Mr. Ledsome’s Funeral Director and Embalmers License was revoked by the Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers as of September 18, 2003.

Applicant submitted documents supporting the Criminal History.  The records of the Department also reflect that an order to cease and desist was issued by the Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, on November 24, 2004 subsequent to the license revocation being filed in 2003.
Ms. Huggins disclosed her affiliation with Stewart Enterprises.

Ms. Wiener stated that Mr. Ledsome first became a licensed funeral director in 1992.  There were no complaints filed against his license and no disciplinary action was taken against his license until 2003, when the Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers took action. 

 In 1998 there was an incident involving monies missing from his employer, Stewart Enterprises.  Apparently, it did not come to the attention of the employer for some period of time.  In 2001, just after Mr. Ledsome left the employment of Stewart Enterprises, some of the employees inquired about that.  Mr. Ledsome initially denied taking the at need funds, but within a week contacted Stewart Enterprises and offered to reimburse the company.  Of course, by that point in time, the company had already involved the authorities and so the matter proceeded in that way.  Mr. Ledsome ultimately pleaded no contest to the charges that were filed and adjudication of guilt was actually withheld.  Mr. Ledsome paid the restitution and successfully completed the terms of the court’s order.  In 2003, the Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers filed an administrative complaint against Mr. Ledsome’s funeral directors and embalmers license.  At that point, Mr. Ledsome began to deal with the Board’s attorney, Charles Pellagrini.  Mr. Pellagrini had notified Mr. Ledsome that he should attend the meeting to discuss the Board.  Mr. Ledsome was anticipating doing that.  However, during the week that the meeting was scheduled, his wife was hospitalized with complications of pregnancy.  The night before the meeting, Mr. Ledsome spoke with Mr. Pellagrini and advised that he would not make the meeting.  Mr. Pellagrini assured him that he would recommend to the Board that the license be suspended until such time as Mr. Ledsome could appear before the Board.  Mr. Ledsome had never had any discipline and could not anticipate the impact that his failure to appear might have on his license.  At the meeting, the Board rejected the Department’s suggestion that the license be suspended and instead moved to revoke the license.  Mr. Ledsome received the call from the attorney the very next day advising that the license was revoked.  Mr. Pellagrini advised that Mr. Ledsome would be receiving a packet in the mail advising what should be done to protect his licensure status.  A couple of weeks passed and the materials were never received.  So Mr. Ledsome and his employer, Mr. Doug Jennings contacted the Board’s office and ultimately received those documents.  Mr. Ledsome then attempted to file an appeal with the Board and actually did so, only to learn that the appeal was filed in the wrong place.  The appeal was not to be filed with the Board, but was to be filed in the office of the local Appellate Court where he lived.  By the time he learned of that the 30 day time for appeal had run out.
Mr. Chairman questioned in what year this took place.

Ms. Wiener responded 2003.  The cease and desist order was issued subsequent to that, but it does appear that order was issued in error.  The order was based upon an allegation that Mr. Ledsome signed applications for burial transit permits on 4 different occasions.  The documents provided to the Board reveal that Mr. Ledsome did not sign any of the documents.  Instead, his name appears in Section C which is entitled “Cremation Authorization”, and it contemplates who takes the information from the medical examiner via telephone when there is authorization for a cremation or burial at sea.  The Office of Vital Statistics in Jacksonville was contacted.  Mr. Mike Grant of that office advised that pursuant to their requirements, that form is actually incorrect.  Any who receives that information from the medical examiner can write their name in that form and often times it is the office secretary or whoever happens to answer the phone.  Mr. Ledsome did nothing wrong in that circumstance and the order to cease and desist appears to have been issued in error.  When that occurred, however, Mr. Ledsome and Mr. Jennings contacted the Board to find out what the whole thing was all about and was advised that was not really a problem.  In the future, the funeral director should put his name there.
Mr. Chairman questioned how long Mr. Ledsome has been working for Mr. Jennings.

Mr. Ledsome responded 10 or 11 years.  The company was acquired by Stewart Enterprises.  Mr. Ledsome left Stewart in 2000 to work for Mr. Jennings.
Ms. Wiener added that since Mr. Ledsome’s license was revoked, he has continued on with Mr. Jennings as his manager.  Ultimately Mr. Ledsome made a huge mistake and has paid the price.  Mr. Ledsome has taken all of the appropriate actions and has maintained employment with Mr. Jennings, who is present and supports Mr. Ledsome.
Mr. Ledsome stated 8 years ago he made a mistake and is very sorry for it.  Mr. Ledsome is not proud of the mistake but would like to grow from it.  Mr. Ledsome apologized for letting people down.

Ms. Wiener added that Mr. Ledsome was licensed for an additional 5 years after the offense.  There have been no further allegations of any crimes.

Mr. Baxley requested an explanation as to why it happened.

Mr. Ledsome stated that at the time, he had financial hardships.

Ms. Zippay stated that she served on the Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers when this issue came up in October and the license was revoked.  Despite what counsel states it was revoked and there is no room to go back and change what has been decided by the prior Board.
Ms. Wiener stated that the permanent revocation of licenses is a concept that is unconstitutional.  This issue was discussed with Ms. Mendelson during the time the application was being prepared for submittal to the Board.  The preface for having drawn a distinction between revocations and suspensions was to highlight the fact that revocations as opposed to suspensions need not be dealt with on an immediate basis.  When a license is suspended, at the conclusion of that suspension it is immediately reinstated.  When a license is revoked, it is not immediately reinstated.  In fact, there has never been upheld a permanent bar to re-licensure.  The case law is squarely against any such concept.  So what it means is ultimately people whose licenses are revoked can be considered for licensure again in the future.  The determination to make is a substantive determination about Mr. Ledsome’s fitness for licensure at this point as opposed to a procedural determination. 
Mr. Baxley stated if this were a new license and there was a problem in the criminal history with stealing money, it would be unlikely that they would be approved.

Mr. Helm questioned whether it is written that once a license is revoked, the licensee can never apply for another license.

Mr. Barnhart responded that they could reapply.

Ms. Wiener stated that Mr. Ledsome would be willing to start his licensure with conditions imposed by the Board.  Because this was a situation involving his former employer, the Board could either license Mr. Ledsome for an initial period on probation or license for an initial period where he is required to continue employment with Mr. Jennings.  It is Mr. Jennings’ funeral establishment and certificate of authority that are ultimately responsible.  Upon renewal, then the Board would have some time to see that Mr. Ledsome is doing the right thing.  
Ms. Wiener added that in the past, the Board has licensed various individuals and businesses that have had financial indiscretions.

Mr. Jennings stated that Mr. Ledsome has not had any complaints from any families.  Mr. Jennings has kept him on in hopes that he would get his license back.  Mr. Ledsome is a good funeral director and embalmer.  The mistakes he made have had no effect on his abilities.  Mr. Ledsome has been doing secretarial work since he is not licensed.  He wants to remain in the industry.

Ms. Wiener questioned whether Mr. Jennings would agree to strictly supervisor and be responsible for Mr. Ledsome.

Mr. Jennings responded that he has no problem with any of the stipulations the Board may impose.

Mr. Barnhart questioned what the final order set in this case.

Ms. Wiener stated that it simply said revocation with a fine of $2500 and costs in the amount of $272.

Mr. Barnhart questioned whether it stated when the licensee could reapply or how long it would be revoked.

Ms. Wiener stated that it did not speak to those issues at all.

Mr. Barnhart stated that Florida Statutes states that no one can be issued the same or other license if it has been revoked unless such person shall show by clear and convincing evidence that the person has been rehabilitated and otherwise qualifies for the license applied for.

Ms. Wiener stated that there is no dispute about any of the qualifications in terms of the exams, schooling, etc.

MOTION:  Mr. Baxley moved to deny the applicant.  Ms. Thomas-DeWitt seconded the motion, which failed with 5 dissenting votes.

Ms. Wiener questioned whether there are any conditions that would make the persons who voted against the applicant comfortable.

Mr. Chairman questioned when Mr. Ledsome took the exam last.

Mr. Ledsome responded 1992.

Ms. Huggins stated that she would be in favor as long as he continues to work for Jennings.

Ms. Evans stated that the Department would need confirmation from Mr. Jennings advising that Mr. Ledsome continues to be employed.  I should not be incumbent upon the Department to have to keep check on his employment.

Mr. Baxley questioned whether Mr. Ledsome could be a funeral director and collect any monies.

Mr. Jennings stated that he controls the money.

2nd MOTION:  Col. Ballas moved to reinstate the license provided the Applicant continues to work for Jennings, take and pass the Florida Laws and Rules Examination, probation for 2 years and continuous communication from Mr. Jennings every 6 months regarding the status of Mr. Ledsome’s employment.  Should he violate the terms of the stipulation, Mr. Ledsome also agrees to automatic revocation such that the Board would not have to go through the process of filing another administrative complaint.  Mr. Jones seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

Ms. Zippay left the meeting at 1:15pm.

B. Applications for Funeral Establishment

1.
Bishop’s Funeral Home Inc

Ms. Evans stated that the Applicant submitted the initial application from Change of Ownership of Brinson’s Funeral Home of Orlando, Inc. on March 2, 2006.  Applicant was sent a deficiency letter.  Applicant admitted to practicing at least one funeral at the establishment after the new ownership took over.  The applicants were informed they could not practice until a new license had been issued.  After some complications with Brinson’s Funeral Home of Orlando Inc, the applicants decided to rescind the sale and submit an application under a new name, Bishop’s Funeral Home Inc.  Bishop’s Funeral Home Inc is operating at the same site as Brinson’s Funeral Home of Orlando, Inc.  Fingerprint cards for the two principals, Richard Bishop and Ingrid Bishop, were received and the report was returned with no criminal history.  The inspection was requested on April 20, 2006 and the results are pending.

The Department has repeatedly requested a copy of the closing documents of the acquisition, but has not received the information.  On April 19th, the Department received a document alleging purchase of this new establishment was not legal and the establishment license of Brinson’s Funeral Home of Orlando had not been surrendered.  Accordingly, there can not be 2 licensed funeral establishments at the same location.
Mr. Richard Bishop questioned the Board’s concerns regarding the funeral home.

Ms. Evans responded that first the Department was told that the stock of Brinson’s Funeral Home of Orlando, Inc. was purchased.  Then, it was stated that the purchase was rescinded.  A new application was submitted under a new name, a new corporation.  Then the Department received a letter stating that the sale was illegal.  Brinson’s Funeral Home of Orlando, Inc. still has a license at that location that has to be surrendered.  They are not acknowledging the sale and the law states that there can not be 2 establishments at the same location.
Mr. Bishop stated that he had no knowledge of all of Brinson’s legal issues, prior to his involvement.  The sale was rescinded as there was a problem with the funeral home.  The funeral home was closed down.  Jasmin Richardson advised the FDIC, Mr. Lloyd Sanders, that there was a cease and desist order, which has not been received.  Prior to the attempted purchase, there were 3 bodies left in the facility, by the previous owners.  There were also some bodies left in the crematory, which had not been cremated.  The administrator contacted Ms. Evans to inform the Department of this.  Mr. Bishop paid to have the bodies cremated.  There was an issue of who actually owned the funeral home.  Mr. Bishop’s attorney has spoken with Ms. Mendelson and this has been an ongoing issue.  A declaratory action has been filed with the court.  The police was called to advise them of the preexisting problems that were not revealed to the Bishop’s or their attorney.  Thousands of dollars have been lost as a result of obeying Ms. Richardson, who is just a clerk and had no authority to close a funeral home.  As soon as the judge rules on that, criminal charges will be filed against the previous owner.  
There were 2 owners of Brinson’s Funeral Home, Reginald Hicks and Arthur Jackson.  Mr. Hicks and Mr. Jackson had a disagreement after the sale.  Mrs. Jackson contacted Ms. Richardson who in turn contacted

Mr. Sanders.  Mr. Bishop was not aware that the license for Brinson’s was still active.  Since the license was still active, the funeral home should never have been shut down by a clerk, without sending official notice.  Mr. Bishop advises that he did what was right according to the law.
Mr. Chairman questioned when this occurred.

Mr. Bishop responded that this occurred March 2006.

Mr. Chairman questioned where the contract is showing that the business and property was purchased.

Mr. Bishop stated that he has a copy to present to the Board.

Ms. Evans stated that Mr. Bishop is making allegations that Ms. Richardson advised them to cease and desist.  Ms. Richardson was correcting in telling the FDIC not to operate as the Bishops did not have a license.  

Mr. Bishop stated that they attempted to apply for the license, but Ms. Richardson stopped the process.

Ms. Evans stated that the law states that there has to be a license in order for a funeral home to operate.  Even if you purchased the stock and are a new owner, you must apply for your own license.
Ms. Demetress Morales stated that in February, a call was placed to Department requesting the guidelines for purchasing an existing funeral home.  Originally, we were told to complete the entire new application because the people that were on the corporation had not been fingerprinted.  Even though it was a corporation change, a new application had to be submitted along with fingerprints and the appropriate fees.  The Department advised that we could still operate while this process was being completed, but may need to provide a letter from the previous owner giving permission to continue to operate.  The application and the fees were submitted on February 28th. On the day we were scheduled to take possession of the funeral home, our attorney was out of the country.  The person who sold the funeral home sent a letter to the people who were managing the funeral home stating that it had been sold.  When the attorney returned, he sent a letter and that’s when the Bishop’s went in, which was March 7th or 8th.  None of the funeral home staff was changed.  The only thing that was different was the owner of the corporation.  We were under the impression that the corporate license goes along with the sale.  
Ms. Evans stated that the sale took place and a new application has to be filed.

Ms. Morales stated that the application had already been filed at that point.

Ms. Evans stated that the application has to be approved.

Ms. Morales stated that initially, they were not advised of this.
Ms. Evans stated that the Department appreciates the fact that the Bishops took care of the bodies that were left behind.  The bottom line is that the Bishops are applying for a license at the location on Kirkman Road, but the owners are stating that they did not sell the business.  
Ms. Morales stated that there is no way the previous owners can operate as they do not have anything.

Mr. Barnhart stated that the license is still valid.

Mr. Bishop stated that the reasoning for applying for a license was to change the ownership.  Ms. Bishop stated that they were misinformed by the Department and no one wants to accept responsibility for the funeral home being shut down.  Someone has to take responsibility for the error that has almost bankrupted us.  
Ms. Evans stated that Ms. Richardson told Mr. Sanders correctly.  The law states that you cannot operate without a license, even if you are taking over an existing firm that has been up and running.  

Mr. Chairman stated that the new license would be issued at the time that the old one was surrendered.

Ms. Evans stated that the license has not been surrendered.

Ms. Morales stated that the previous owner took the licenses.
Mr. Chairman stated that should have been a part of the contract.

Ms. Evans questioned when the ownership issue would be resolved.

Mr. Bishop stated that he is not sure.  The attorney filed a declaratory action with the court.  

Ms. Morales stated that it was an attorney who sold the corporation.

Mr. Bishop stated that the Board needs to look further into this as Ms. Richardson had no authority to shut down a funeral home that is licensed and active.  

Mr. Chairman stated that Ms. Richardson did not shut the Bishops down as they did not possess a license.  

Col. Ballas suggest deferring the application.

Ms. Evans stated that the application could not be deferred unless the applicant waives their 90-day rights or withdraw the application.

Mr. Barnhart stated that the applicant may want to waive the 90-days because if not, the applicant could face a denial this afternoon.
Mr. Chairman stated that the ownership issue has to be resolved before the Board could issue another license.

Ms. Hubbell questioned whether the other parties are refusing to surrender the license.

Ms. Morales stated that she was under the impression that they had been submitted to the Department.

Ms. Evans stated that on April 19th, the Department received a letter from an attorney representing Brinson’s stating that they did not sell.

Mr. Chairman questioned whether the applicant would like to waive the 90-days so that the application is not denied today.
Mr. Bishop agreed to waive the 90-days.

Ms. Thomas-DeWitt recused herself from voting as she is familiar with the case and both parties involved.

Mr. Bishop questioned whether he is to bring proof of ownership back to the Board.

Ms. Evans stated that the Board has to have the dispute between the buyer and the seller resolved.  If Mr. Bishop prevails and have ownership of that location and funeral home, then the Board would address that.

Ms. Morales questioned whether a reappearance would be required if all the proper documentation was received by the Department.
Mr. Chairman stated that if the old license is surrendered and all the documentation is in order, the new license could be issued without the applicant reappearing before the Board.

Ms. Mendelson stated that the Department has a pending administrative complaint against Brinson’s Funeral Home of Orlando, Inc.  The consent order has been signed, but there is now dispute over whether that person had any ownership interest in Brinson’s Funeral Home of Orlando, Inc.  That is the same person who signed the documents to sell the outstanding shares to Mr. Bishop.  

MOTION:  Mr. Helm moved to defer the application with the waiver of the 90-days.  Ms. Huggins seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

2.
JGR Funeral Services Inc

Ms. Evans stated that the Applicant submitted a Change of Ownership and Name Change application on March 2, 2006.  The previous facility was Glass Funeral Home, owners Jim and Winifred Glass.  The application was complete.  The fingerprint cards for the principals, Julio Gonzalez-Roel, Lucia Gonzalez-Roel and Sergio Cavazos, were submitted and processed.  The report found no criminal history.  The establishment was inspected and yielded no findings.  

Mr. Brandenburg stated that he was a bit concerned that in Sunday’s Tampa Tribune there was an obituary with JGR Funeral Services’ name and the establishment has been advertising prior to receiving a license.

Ms. Lucia Gonzalez-Roel stated that the advertisement was advertised on March 3rd, the day of the closing on the funeral home.  Ms. Gonzalez-Roel contacted the Department and was advised that this was not acceptable until the application has been approved.  Immediately the ad was changed to “Opening Soon,” to announce to the community that the establishment would be opening.  
Ms. Thomas-DeWitt stated that is still advertising.  Until the establishment is licensed, advertising is not permitted.  At some point, the licensed funeral director should be consulted along with the owners as they are not familiar with the law.

Ms. Gonzalez-Roel stated that the Department already contacted the Tribune and Florida Mortuary, who actually handled the call.  JGR only helped the family write the obituary.

Mr. Brandenburg stated that at the bottom of the obituary, it clearly states JGR Funeral Home.

Ms. Gonzalez-Roel stated that she has documentation that was sent to the Tribune without a name.  The family put that it.  The Tribune advised the Department that it was a mistake.  
Ms. Evans stated that the Department has verified that Florida Mortuary handled the service.

MOTION:  Col. Ballas moved to approve the application.  Ms. Hubbell seconded the motion, which passed with 4 dissenting votes.

3.
Morning Glory Funeral Home of St Petersburg
Ms. Evans stated that the Applicant submitted application on January 18, 2006.  The application was not complete and a deficiency letter was sent out.  The applicant returned the requested items on February 8, 2006.  Fingerprint cards were submitted for the principal, Lisa Harley-Speights and submitted for processing.  

The inspection for the Establishment was requested and is still pending the results.

Applicant answered “Yes” to Section 9, in Criminal History Question a.-“Has any person subject to disclosure requirements ever plead guilty, been convicted, or entered a plea in the nature of no contest, regardless of whether adjudication was entered or withheld by the court in which the case was prosecuted, in the courts of Florida or another state or the United States or a foreign country, regarding any crime indicated below?”

 The fingerprint report was returned with criminal history.  

Offense:       Fraud-Illegal Use of Credit Cards

Pled:             Nolo Contendere
Sentence:      3 Years Probation

Disposition:  Adjudication Withheld 

Offense:       Grand 3rd Degree DWEL property 100 to under 300 dollars

Pled:             Nolo Contendere
Sentence:      1 Year Probation (Consecutive)

Disposition:  Guilty/Convicted 
Ms. Wiener stated that Ms. Lisa Harley-Speights is a licensed funeral director.  This matter was thoroughly reviewed by the Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers before she was granted that licensure and has been licensed for approximately 10 years.  
Ms. Thomas-DeWitt questioned whether Ms. Harley-Speights has 100% ownership of Morning Glory.

Ms. Lisa Harley-Speights answered yes.

Mr. Brandenburg stated that the application indicates that arrangements were made with Palm State Mortuary Services for refrigeration and storage, but the corresponding letter is on Morning Glory’s letterhead not that of Palm State.
Ms. Harley-Speights stated that Morning Glory’s refrigeration has not been working properly.  Palm State has a licensed crematory.

Mr. Brandenburg questioned whether Ms. Harley-Speights has a letter from Palm State.
Ms. Harley-Speights responded yes.  It was submitted with the inspection on Tuesday.

Ms. Wiener stated that it was not included in the packet.

Ms. Evans stated that the Department stated that a copy of the inspection report was faxed on April 19th.  The memorandum reads, “Please be advised Palm State Crematory will be providing removal refrigeration cremation services for Morning Glory Funeral Chapel in St. Petersburg.  There is also a letter from Morning Glory’s Chapel stating that they are authorized to embalm dead human remains at the licensed funeral home.  The inspection reflects that there are problems with the refrigeration at Morning Glory Funeral Home that has not been resolved.  Ms. Evans questioned whether Ms. Harley-Speights would be using the refrigeration if embalmings are to be done at the funeral home.

Ms. Harley-Speights answered no.  When Palm State removes a body, it is immediately placed in a cooler.  Then from the cooler, the body is embalmed and prepared for services.
Ms. Evans responded that the body is transported from Pinellas County to Hillsboro County to Morning Glory, where the embalming would be conducted.

Ms. Harley-Speights agreed.
MOTION:  Mr. Brandenburg moved to approve the application.  Mr. Baxley seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

XVI.       Administrative Report                 

The Administrative Report was submitted to the Board on the Agenda.  

XVII.
Funeral Administrative Report  

The Funeral Administrative Report was submitted to the Board on the Agenda.

XVIII. Disciplinary Report

The Disciplinary Report was submitted to the Board on the Agenda.

	
	Issued Since Last Meeting (February 9, 2006)
	Issued Since

January 1, 2006

	Notice of Non-Compliance
	0
	0

	Letters of Guidance
	0
	0

	Citations
	0
	0



XIX. 
Rules Committee Report 

Ms. Evans stated that Mr. Mark Revitz sends his regrets for not attending today’s meeting.    The last meeting was held on March 30th.  Several rules were discussed.  The rule for Monument Builders needs to be amended based upon the Rules Committee discussion and resubmitted to this Board.  Due to Ms. Evans’ absence, the Rule was not amended and placed on today’s agenda, but will be available for the conference call.  The other 2 rules, Outer Burial/Vault Identification Tags and “Established” Grave Spaces are being worked and will be resubmitted to Rules Committee.
XX.
Emergency Preparedness Committee

Ms. Evans stated that the Committee met in March and is making progress in emergency planning.  Hopefully, a meeting will be set up with a representative from the Department of Health to discus the FEMORS plan.  The Committee wants to address emergency issues in Florida.
XXI.
Finance Committee Report 

None
XXIII.
Chairman's Report

Mr. Chairman stated that he would like to thank the volunteers serving on all the Committees.  

XXIV. Attorney Report

A. Metro Professional Services, a/k/a DeGroat, Inc., d/k/a Metro Mortuary Transport, Inc. vs. Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers and Department of Financial Services, Board of Funeral, Cemetery and Consumer Services, DOAH Case Number 06-0928F / NONPUBLIC ATTORNEY-CLIENT SESSION
Mr. Barnhart stated that this was going to be a nonpublic session, but because of problems with the advertisement it was decided that it would be discussed in a public meeting.  This is a court case that the Board considered in December.  Under the Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers, there was a case where the administrative law judge found no basis for the Board to proceed under.  The ALJ reserved jurisdiction for attorneys’ fees and costs.  A case was filed by the Metro Mortuary Transport against the Department for fees and costs.  The fees and costs that have been presented to the DOAH Judge are in the neighborhood of $14,000 -$15,000.  The proposal is that fees and costs in the amount of $10,500 be approved to resolve this matter.  Mr. Barnhart reviewed the affidavit of fees and costs and found it to be in good order.  The hourly rate and the amount of hours charged appears to be reasonable.  Mr. Barnhart recommended that the Board approve the settlement.
MOTION:  Mr. Brandenburg moved to approve the settlement.  Col. Ballas seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

Mr. Barnhart introduced Ms. Deborah Loucks, who will serve as Board Counsel.

Ms. Deborah Loucks stated that she graduated from Clayton University School of Law in Omaha, NE, and has been licensed as an attorney in Nebraska since 1992.  Ms. Loucks moved to Florida in 1999 and up until 2 weeks ago was working at the Department of Health in the Prosecution Services Unit and prosecuted on behalf of 7 Boards and briefly for the Board of Medicine.  Ms. Loucks is currently working for this Board and a few other Boards out of the Office of Attorney General and is looking forward to work with this Board.

B. Status Report

Ms. Mendelson submitted a memorandum on the Prosecution Status Report and the Collection Report.
Mr. Baxley thanked Ms. Mendelson for working on the collections.
XXV. 
Executive Director’s Report 

          
A. Cemetery Renewals

Ms. Evans stated that The Department records indicate the following cemeteries have not received renewal licenses for the period beginning January 1, 2006:

Renewal Form/Fees Not Received:

1. Lincoln Memorial Gardens of Ocala Florida (Ocala) - Delinquent Notice issued 2/17/06

2. Work & Son - Osiris, Inc. d/b/a: Royal Palm North Cemetery (St. Petersburg)                  

3. Work & Son - Royal Palm Acquisition, Inc.  d/b/a: Royal Palm Cemetery (St. Petersburg)

4. Work & Son - Sarasota Memorial, Inc. d/b/a: Sarasota Memorial Park (Sarasota)

     - The three Work & Sons cemeteries have not renewed in 2005 or in 2006.

Late Renewal/Owes Delinquent Penalties:

1. Evergreen Memorial Park Cemetery (Miami) - Renewed 3/13/06, Dept. has sent delinquent penalty notice

2. White City Cemetery Association (Fort Pierce) - Renewed 3/13/06, Dept. has sent delinquent penalty notice

Other:

1. Liveoak Park Memorial Cemetery  (Crestview) - Address/mail problem. Department resent application.

2. Rose Lawn Cemetery (Gulf Breeze) - Address/mail problem, Department resent application.

3. Riverview Memorial (Cocoa) - Paid, form not complete.                  

4. State Park Cemetery Company Inc., d/b/a: Washington Park Cemetery (Orlando) 

     - Paid in 2006, prior year delinquent penalties outstanding.              

Of all the cemeteries that have renewed report gross sales $172,363,000.

B.  Preneed License Renewal Late Fee
Ms. Evans addressed this issue as the Preneed License Renewal period is approaching.  The Department would like to know whether the Board would like to continue the previous schedule of late fees.  The attached fee was submitted for Board approval.

# OF DAYS LATE



FINE

                         1-7 days…………………………………………$0

                       8-30 days…………………………………………$200

                     31-90 days…………………………………………$500

             91 or more days……………………………………..…$1,000

MOTION:  Mr. Brandenburg moved to approve the schedule.  Ms. Huggins seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

C.   Preneed Sales Agent Appointment Renewals 

Ms. Evans reported that the preneed sales agent appointments were up for renewal in February.  1128 renewed online, 147 renewed on paper, 1275 was the total renewed and 193 did not renew.  There was a problem with printing the licenses, but this has been resolved and the licenses will be mailed out soon.  The Department is looking into purchasing some special security paper to prevent the licenses from being duplicated.

D.  Report from Richard Baldwin – Examiner for Menorah Gardens Aug. ’05 – Jan. ‘06
The Board members received copies of reports from Richard Baldwin for the months of August ’05 – January ‘06.  Mr. Baldwin continues to assist consumers.


E.
Staffing Report
Ms. Evans stated that she had planned to introduce Mr. Richard Brinkley, Assistant Director, but he had to leave to cover a meeting this afternoon.  Mr. Brinkley will attend future meetings.  The Division is in the process of interviewing and hiring an examiner in Jacksonville, 2 examiners in Tampa, a licensing supervisor and a clerk in the Licensing Section.
XXVI. Upcoming Meeting(s)
A. April 21st  - Preneed License Financial Requirements Committee 9 am – 12 pm (Tallahassee)

B. May 3rd  – Disciplinary Rules Committee 9 am – 12 pm (Tallahassee)

C. May 3rd  – Rules Committee 1 pm – 4 pm (Tallahassee)

D. May 25th – Teleconference

E. June 29th – Board Meeting (Orlando)

Ms. Evans stated that the April 21st Preneed License Financial Requirements Committee was canceled.

XXVII. Adjournment

MOTION:  At 2:04 p.m., the meeting was adjourned.
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